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AWORD FROM THE PRESIDENT

LEE ADLER: A PRESERVATION HERO

he death of Leopold Adler, Il on January 29,

I 2012, marked the end of a brilliantly led life, a

remarkable record of accomplishment, and truly
the closing of an era. Sir Christopher Wren’s famous
epitaph in his creation, St. Paul’s Cathedral, says simply,
“Reader, if you seek his monument look around you.”
The historic districts of Savannah, Georgia, provide a
similar symbol for Lee Adler’s life, for there are countless
buildings and public spaces which would simply not exist
but for his leadership and work.

In 1968, Anna Hunter, the most significant founder
of Historic Savannah Foundation spoke to the Friends
of the Library and said of Lee Adler’s early involvement
with Historic Savannah: “ENTER DYNAMO... It is not
often that a burgeoning civic project has the good fortune to have the man of the hour loom on
the horizon at a critical hour... He has put Historic Savannah Foundation on a big business basis,
driven relentlessly to bring the city to which he is dedicated to national recognition....” Indeed Lee
and his wonderful wife Emma led a group during the 1960s that was totally devoted to Savannah’s
preservation and prosperity; they left no stone unturned in their pursuit of excellence for the city.

Lee’s accomplishments are legendary but by now, are largely taken for granted. He was the first
to see Savannah’s potential in heritage tourism. He hired consultants who found that the economic
impact of tourism in Savannah was only approximately $150,000 in 1958. Under his leadership,
a comprehensive plan for tourism development was published by the Chamber of Commerce and
Historic Savannah Foundation in 1965. Today, the economic impact of tourism in Savannah/Chatham
County is approximately $1 billion annually.

Under Lee’s guidance, a professional survey of downtown’s historic district led to the
establishment of America’s largest National Historic Landmark District. Lee’s strong business and
investment knowledge led him to the establishment of a Revolving Fund for historic properties
in 1964. This real estate based program literally changed the nature of preservation and the face
of Savannah. Historic Savannah’s Revolving Fund has now impacted approximately 400 historic
buildings. Lee’s early work in the Savannah Victorian District pioneered the combination of
preservation and the creation of workforce housing in the early 1970s. This program was called
Savannah Landmark, and it brought thousands of dollars of grant money to the city and created over
400 units of low/moderate income housing. It was for this work that he earned numerous awards,
including the National Medal of the Arts from President George H. W. Bush in 1989. This project,
while lauded internationally, was criticized by some short-sighted Savannahians as “dealing with a
criminal element.” Lee’s courage and compassion for the less fortunate were an inspiration to many
people, and brought a social conscience to preservation.

Lee’s contentious work to save River Street from the Hyatt Hotel, his personal intervention to
save the Lucas Theatre, advocacy for the work of Mr. W.W. Law and the preservation of African
American history, encouragement of Savannah College of Art and Design in its controversial early
years, and scores of other projects and programs are accepted as givens today, but each was a struggle.

As important as Lee Adler was to Savannah, his national contributions are equally impressive.
He traveled tirelessly to 38 states and internationally to tell the Savannah preservation story of how
historic buildings could be saved by using real estate development principles. His annual session at
the National Trust conference entitled “Real Estate is the Name of the Game” was its most popular
and inspired generations of young preservationists. Today a great number of organizations have
revolving funds and they all owe a huge debt to Lee Adler. The National Trust granted him its highest
honor, the Crowninshield Award, in 1982.

Lee was a huge personality and a celebrity in the preservation world, and yet he was always
interested in helping small towns and people just getting started in preservation. He was as generous
with his time, his expertise, and with his lunch expense account as anyone | have ever known.

His love and enthusiasm for Savannah were overwhelming. His expectations were high and he
made those who worked with him increase their commitment to protecting America’s most beautiful
city. If he praised you, you knew he meant it, for he was always sincere and frank.

His determination and fierce drive were a force to contend with. Savannah has missed Lee Adler
since his illness took him off the front lines. | know | miss him and | believe America misses him
as well. 3
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preservation efforts statewide.

Address all correspondence to:

Traci Clark

Director of Communications & Rambler Editor
1516 Peachtree Street, N.W., Atlanta, GA, 30309
or email tclark@georgiatrust.org.

Special thanks to Georgia Power for printing
the Rambler.

Cover: Hinman Research Building, Atlanta
2012 Excellence in Restoration Award
Photo by Jonathan Hillyer Photography

Moving? Contact membership@georgiatrust.org or
404-885-7805 with your new address.

HALSTON PITMAN, RACEMSM.COM

GEORGIA TRUST FOR HISTORIC
PRESERVATION FALL RAMBLE
SET FOR LAGRANGE & BEYOND,
OCTOBER 12-14

Fall foliage and cooler tem-
peratures bring the Fall
Ramble, so mark your calen-
dars for October 12-14, 2012,
and plan to join us as we ex-
plore LaGrange, Warm Springs
& Pine Mountain. The itinerary
is filled with a variety of inter-
esting historic sites, including
charming downtown centers,
splendid homes, lovely gar-
dens, and the fascinating plac-
es associated with President
Franklin D. Roosevelt’s many

visits for therapeutic treatment.  Ths fall's Heritage Reception will be held at Blue Springs, a unique
We’ll culminate the weekend 1.000-acre watershed surrounding beautiful crystal blue springs.

with a brunch and tours of the 35-acre Hills & Dales Estate, including the Neil Reed designed
home of the Fuller E. Callaway Family.

Upper-level Georgia Trust members are in for a special treat at the Fall Ramble’s Heritage Re-
ception, to be held at Blue Springs near Callaway Gardens. Cason and Virginia Callaway purchased
the 1,000-acre watershed surrounding a quartzite aquifer that supplies Blue Springs around 1930.
The reception will be held at a picturesque pavilion next to a one-acre, spring-fed pool blasted out
of quartzite rock. President Roosevelt was a frequent visitor. To upgrade your membership to be
a part of this event, call the Georgia Trust Membership Manager at 404-885-7805.

Members of the General
Oglethorpe Society
enjoyed a trip to Cuba

this past January. This
exclusive excursion was
offered only to the Trust’s
General Oglethorpe
Society, which consists of
Chairman’s Council and
Chairman’s Circle members.

For more information

or to upgrade your
membership level, please
call 404-885-7805 or email
membership@georgiatrust.

2013 W
PLACES
IN PERIL

ate development-or other threats.

around THE TRUST

MARK YOUR CALENDARS!

PRESERVATION MONTH

May 2012

Rhodes Hall, Atlanta

Celebrate National Preservation Month
with us! The Georgia Trust and the Historic
Preservation Division of the Georgia
Department of Natural Resources present
the 2012 Preservation Month Lecture Series,
featuring lectures every Thursday night in
May given by preservationists from around
the state.

MACON'’S SECRET

GARDEN TOUR

May 4-6, 2012

Hay House, Macon

Tour Macon'’s finest gardens and homes
during Macon'’s Secret Garden Tour, central
Georgia’s premier garden event. Browse
garden-themed vendors and attend free
seminars by garden experts.

2012 FALL RAMBLE

October 12-14, 2012

LaGrange & Beyond

Join us this fall as we explore “America’s
Greatest Little City,” the homes of Pine
Mountain, the fascinating history of Warm
Springs, and the grand estate of Hills &
Dales.

UPTOWN RHODES RACE 5K
November 10, 2012

Rhodes Hall, Atlanta

Tie up those shoelaces for the fourth annual
Uptown Rhodes Race 5K. This family friendly
event features a gently rolling scenic course
through Ansley Park, one of Atlanta’s most
historic and beautiful neighborhoods.

CALL FOR NOMINATIONS | Deadline: June 4

Do you Knew of a special irreplaeeable-historic building or site that is highly threatened by
sgemolition, neglecty’inappropriate development.or other threats? If so, this isyour oppor-
Jdumity‘to-help save it. The“Georgia Trust’s Places in‘Peril program seeks to identify and

preserve historic sites threatened by demolition, neglect, tack of maintenance, inappropri-

Vi_si?www.GeorgiaTrust.org for more information or to download a nomination form.

Chattahoochee Park Pavilion, Gainesville
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Olmsted Linear Park, Atlanta

his year marks The Georgia Trust’s 35th annual Georgia Preservation Awards. Since 1978, The

Georgia Trust has recognized and honored projects and individuals who have contributed to the ex-

cellence of preservation in Georgia. The goals of the preservation movement —and of these awards
— remain as relevant today: to recognize our history and improve the quality of life in our downtowns and
throughout Georgia. This year’s Georgia Preservation Award recipients range from a former ice plant to a
historic landscape. We also recognize several individuals and projects with our highest awards: the Mar-
guerite Williams Award, presented annually to the project that has had the greatest impact on preservation
in the state; the Camille W. Yow Volunteer of the Year Award; and the Mary Gregory Jewett Award for
Lifetime Preservation Service.

ATLANTA
Excellence in Rehabilitation:

2012 Preservation Awards Committee: Chair Richard Laub, Monica Callahan, Greta Covington, Dave Crass,
Elizabeth DuBose, Karen Huebner, Chris Lambert, Michael Miller, Josh Rogers, Susan Starr, and Burke Walker

Georgia Trust Staff: Mark C. McDonald, President and CEO; Kate Ryan, Director of Preservation; Emily Taff,
Preservation Assistant

The awards committee bases its decisions on the contributions of the person or project to the community and/or state and on com-
pliance with the Secretary of the Interior’ Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. The committee recommends to the
Trust officers the recipients of the Preservation Stewardship and Excellence in Restoration and Rehabilitation awards.
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GEORGIA THEATRE

After a fire gutted this Athens landmark
in 2009, the future of the Georgia Theatre
looked bleak. The owner, already in the pro-
cess of restoring it, was determined to bring
the theater back to life. Through a partner-
ship with The Georgia Trust, donations were
accepted for rehabilitation efforts. The inte-
rior was reconstructed to be much the same
as the original, and the soot-covered brick
walls were left exposed as a reminder of the
devastating fire. ADA necessities and rooftop
additions for office space and a café were
added, providing much-needed additional
income to the property. The Athens commu-
nity, as well as numerous UGA alumni and
music lovers, are grateful to have the be-
loved landmark back and looking so good.
Image by Ryan Myers

HINMAN RESEARCH BUILDING

This incredible mid-century building on the
Georgia Tech campus was in need of seri-
ous restoration and rehabilitation in order
to better serve students in Tech’s College
of Architecture. The project began by thor-
oughly documenting the structure with Re-
vit. Following that, concrete conditions were
tested and repaired, and steel windows were
repaired in place with new insulated glaz-
ing to significantly cut down on heat transfer
through the panes. The dramatic open interior
was reconceived to accommaodate the College
of Architecture’s needs on a restricted budget
while retaining historic materials. This build-
ing should serve as an inspiration for budding
architects for many years to come.

Image by Jonathan Hillyer Photography

OLD COMMERCIAL BANK

OF METCALFE

This small, South Georgia bank building was
constructed in 1916 in the town of Metcalfe.
With much of the work being done by the
building’s owners, the non-original enclosed
loggia was removed and a historically appro-
priate storefront reconstructed. The interior
of the building was restored and updated to
accommodate current use and was promptly
rented to a local seamstress and upholsterer.
The rehabilitation will hopefully encourage
other preservation projects in this tiny his-
toric commercial district which was listed on
The Georgia Trust’s 2009 Places in Peril list.



BRIGGS-SMITH BUILDING

The Briggs-Smith building is one of down-
town Valdosta’s oldest commercial build-
ings; it was probably built in the 1860s. It
has served many functions including as a dry
goods store, hardware store, and even a bath
house which “Doc” Holliday, whose dentist
office was just across the street, is reported
to have visited. During the renovation by the
owners, which began in 2008, the interior un-
derwent extensive rehabilitation that includ-
ed uncovering windows, original transoms,
doors, skylights, and woodwork. The facade
lost much of its original Victorian ornamen-

WRECKING BAR BREWPUB

AND THE MARIANNA

The Victor H. Kriegshaber House on More-
land Avenue in Atlanta was designed by ar-
chitect Willis Denny and completed in 1900.
It is one of the finest examples of the extrava-
gant Beaux Arts style of late Victorian archi-
tecture in Atlanta. After the family moved
in 1924, the house was used as a church, a
dance studio and, until 2005, as the Wreck-
ing Bar Architectural Antiques. The build-
ing’s fate was uncertain until its current own-
ers saved it from dilapidation, rehabilitating
the structure as the Wrecking Bar Brewpub

tation in an early 20th century facelift, but its B R I G G I S I T H o g on the basement level and The Marianna, an
basic form remains intact. The building now B U I L[D I G Y : g

VALDOSTA, LOWNDES.Ci dl\iTY

event space, on the main floor.
serves as the corporate office for a local com-
pany, and is a beautiful addition to historic

i ExceIIence in Rehabilitation

downtown Valdosta.

EMPORIUM BUILDING

This 1885 commercial building on Broad
Street in downtown Augusta housed many
retail enterprises before the McLeods bought
the building and undertook its rehabilitation.
The Emporium Building now houses nine
upscale apartments on the 2nd and 3rd floors
with rooftop decks and balconies that were
sensitively added so as not to be visible from
the facade. A parking conundrum was solved
with interior parking for residents at the rear
ground floor level and the 1st floor remains
open for commercial space. The rehabilita-
tion of this building has helped to improve
the attractiveness of Augusta’s Broad Street
and bring residents back to the center of the
city.

JUDGE H.W. HOPKINS HOUSE

This prominent Queen Anne style house
with Italianate features was built in 1885 by
Thomasville architect Tudor Rommerdall for
Henry William Hopkins, who served as the
city’s mayor beginning in 1886. Hopkins was
a strong proponent of civic improvements,
S0 his house was one of the first in town to
have natural gas lighting and running water.
The surrounding area is now primarily com-
mercial, but thanks to community efforts, the
previous owners agreed to sell rather than
move this house. With the aid of Thomas-
ville Landmarks in the tax credit process, the
new owners have beautifully rehabilitated
the building to serve as the office for Mosaic
Psychological Services.

xcellence in Rehabilitation

MORGAN TENNIS COURT

Constructed in 1929, the Morgan Tennis
Court is part of the Jekyll Island Club Na-
tional Historic Landmark area. By 2002 the
building had fallen into disrepair and was
closed until 2009 when the Jekyll Island
Authority began examining the building as
potential space for a convention and event
facility. The rehabilitation, which began in
2010, retained most of the historic material,
including interior wall boards and views of
the trusses above, while a balcony and sepa-
rate kitchen facility were added to accommo-
date the facility’s new use.

WAYNESBORO ICE PLANT

The City of Wayneshoro Ice Plant was in op-
eration from 1905 until the early 1970s, pro-
ducing both ice and electricity for Waynes-
boro’s citizens. The building fell into serious
disrepair but avoided a demolition threat in
2000. In 2005 Mayor Jesse Stone decided to
rehabilitate it. The rehabilitation maintains
the ice plant’s original industrial character,
including preservation of the equipment such
as a compressor for the ice manufacture and
a generator used to power the plant’s opera-
tions and later to fuel the city’s first electric
streetlights. This beautifully preserved build-
ing is now in use as a welcome center, mu-
seum, and meeting facility.




WAYNESBORO HIGH SCHOOL

The Waynesboro High School building was
constructed circa 1936. The building was
abandoned by 2000 and vandalism soon en-
sued, creating a blight on the neighborhood.
Local residents and preservation commission
members sought to save the community land-
mark from demolition by seeking develop-
ment companies to rehabilitate the building.
It is now a senior living facility with individ-
ual apartments in each of the original class-
rooms. The rehabilitated building maintains
historic interior features including hallway
cubbies, coat-hooks, wainscoting and even
chalkboards. Additionally, energy efficiency
and “green” building technologies were used
throughout the project, resulting in Earth-
Craft certification.

GEM THEATRE

The building that houses the GEM Theatre
was originally built in 1920 as a furniture
store, but became a theater in 1936 and oper-
ated as such until 1980 when it was put back
into the retail industry as a clothing store.
Over the years of transition, much of the
interior finishes were removed or modified.
In 2002 a local nonprofit organization was
formed to revive the building after it had sat
vacant for some time. The roof was replaced,
exterior features restored, and the interior
was rehabilitated referencing historic photos
from 1936 to the mid-1950s. The GEM The-
atre is once again a focal point of community
life in downtown Calhoun and will hopefully
inspire more businesses in this historic com-
mercial district to follow suit.

JOHN C. GODBOLD BUILDING

Located in the heart of the Fairlie-Poplar
district in downtown Atlanta, the John C.
Godbold Federal building is an amalgama-
tion of three originally interconnected build-
ings built for the Crumley-Sharp Hardware
Company. The creative rehabilitation project,
which has received LEED Gold certification,
incorporates basement level parking beneath
one structure, blast-proof metal replacement
windows that match the style of the previous
wooden windows, and interior spaces that
juxtapose contemporary construction with
historic structural materials.

Image by Robbins Photography, Inc.
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BITSY GRANT TENNIS CENTER

The Bitsy Grant Tennis Center in Atlanta was
designed in 1952 by Atlanta architect Rich-
ard Aeck. The restoration of the concrete
and glass structure focused on the historic
mid-century character of the facility. Most
noticeably, non-contributing finishes were
removed, original finishes were restored,
and insulated glass for increased energy ef-
ficiency was installed in existing frames. On
the interior, original paint schemes and even
period furniture was chosen. Fundraising for
the restoration was lead by the Friends of
Bitsy Grant Tennis, and since its July 2011
reopening, the tennis center has already seen
an increase in traffic. This is an exciting
restoration for the Atlanta community and
for the preservation of modern architecture.
Image by Jonathan Hillyer Photography

EFFINGHAM COUNTY COURTHOUSE
The “grand neoclassical palace of justice”
that is the 1909 Effingham County Court-
house was designed by Savannah architect
Hyman Witcover. The courthouse had un-
dergone two major renovations in its history
which altered many of its original details.
The restoration process sought not only to re-
cover those architectural details and historic
appearance, but to use the most sustainable
means available with LEED energy standards
as guidelines. The courthouse project was
funded by SPLOST dollars and local labor-
ers, tradesmen, and contractors conducted
most of the work, furthering the project’s pri-
ority of investing in the local economy.

Image by Richard Leo Johnson, Atlantic Archives, Inc.

WALLACE GROVE SCHOOL

Built in 1901, the Wallace Grove School
building is the last in situ school building of
approximately 100 schools built for African-
Americans in Madison County between 1871
and 1910. Pastor Tommy Chatman and the
congregation were determined to restore the
building as closely as possible to its original
state. The pastor and his team conducted the
work inside and out, carefully following the
Secretary of the Interior’s guidelines for res-
toration, retaining as much historic material
as possible. The congregation and the com-
munity protected an important resource and
created the opportunity to interpret Morgan
County’s educational history and black his-
tory for years to come.

COURT

SPRIN

GFIELD, EFFINGHAM COUNTY

Excellence in Restoration
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MARY RAY MEMORIAL SCHOOL

The Mary Ray Memorial School held its first
class in September 1908. The building was
a cornerstone in the then-new town of Ray-
mond in Coweta County, but by the 1980s the
school had fallen into disrepair. It was placed
on The Georgia Trust’s Places in Peril list in
2009. A group of former students and com-
munity members set about bringing the prop-
erty back to life. Their vision to restore the
building to its original condition, combined
with limited funding, ensured a restoration
ethic wherein almost no historic material was
discarded. With the help of a small grant from
The Georgia Trust, this project was achieved
using mostly local funds and volunteer labor.
It is an inspiring example of a community-
driven public restoration effort.

THOMAS COUNTY

HISTORICAL SOCIETY

The Thomas County Historical Society was
founded in 1952. Over the decades, it has
worked to preserve and interpret artifacts,
documents, and photographs which reveal
Thomas County’s rich heritage. In 1969 the
organization found a permanent home for
their collections at the Flowers/Robert House
and, over the years, has preserved the home
and other threatened structures that represent
the scope of the county’s history. The orga-
nization has recently become stewards of the
magnificent Lapham-Patterson House, for
which they have taken over operations and
repair. The Thomas County Historical Soci-
ety has proven to be a worthy steward and
interpreter of Thomas County and Georgia
history.

JENKINS COUNTY COURTHOUSE
Like other small towns and rural counties
across America, Jenkins County has been hard
hit in recent decades by a decline in industry,
leading to a struggling economy and decreas-
ing population. Despite this trend, the county
and community have shown their commitment
to preserving their built environment. In 1996
Downtown Millen Historic District was placed
on the National Register. In 2008 the Jenkins
County Board of Commissioners began efforts
to restore the Jenkins County Courthouse, per-
forming much-needed repairs to the grand 1910
public building and uncovering historic archi-
tectural details that had been obscured ina 1973
renovation. The preservation efforts of Jenkins
County are encouraging as other towns seek to
preserve the historic character of their commu-
nities.

NEWNAN, COWETA CO

Chairman’s Award & Excellence i

ROSS CRANE/SAE HOUSE

The Sigma Alpha Epsilon (SAE) House in 7
Athens was originally built in 1842 as the

home of Colonel Ross Crane. The house

was documented in the 1930s by the Historic

4 iy
.

American Buildings Survey (HABS) and is
now listed on the National Register of His- __ :
toric Places. The SAE fraternity has been _ i ' ¢

stewards of this house since 1929 and has 4 L 1 o i 1k ' \&'
undertaken several rehabilitations to make ' I@ : '

necessary upgrades for the building’s use .m = |
as a fraternity house while still maintaining § N oy
its historic integrity. In 2008 it began an ex- pLy 3

tensive rehabilitation project that included -~ ) ‘_ /\ <

detailed repairs of historic windows, water ROS C 77\ 1] F

damaged areas, and character defining ar- S AE HO '

chitectural features. The Georgia chapter of :

SAE has shown its commitment to protecting ATHEN_S’ CLARKE COUNTY
the historic house that is in its care. Stewardsnip s
JEANNE CYRIAQUE & M,

ATLANTA, FULTON COUNTY S St T e,

Mary Gregory Jewett Award

Since 2000 Jeanne Cyriaque has served as the coordinator of activities of the
Georgia African American Historic Preservation Network (GAAHPN), building
her reputation as a leader in the preservation of African American history and
sites. In this position she has also been editor and writer for Reflections, an award-
winning publication that has added greatly to our understanding and awareness
of African American cultural resources. She has brought attention to many threat-
ened resources, leading strong local, state, and national efforts to preserve sites.
Jeanne is also a founding member of the Rosenwald School initiative and served
as commissioner of the Gullah-Geechee Cultural Heritage Corridor. Her impact
on our awareness, understanding, and preservation of this important cultural pres-
ence in our state is incomparable.

BILL UNDERWOOD &
JOHN TURMAN

ATLANTA, FULTON COUNTY
Camille Yow Award

Bill Underwood and John Turman have volunteered on Tuesdays at Rhodes Hall
as a team for eight years. Besides entertaining visitors and leading tours, they are
always willing to help out around the house, whether it be stuffing envelopes,
organizing files or preparing Ramble material. John gets very enthusiastic about
his tours, something noted with appreciation by guests, expanding upon historical
fact and fiction about Rhodes Hall, Atlanta, and Civil War history, while never
failing to throw in a plug for Hay House. Bill Underwood is never without a smile
and a compliment, lifting everyone’s spirits as he cheerfully helps staff members.
In addition to Bill’s dedicated volunteer work at Rhodes Hall, he and his wife are
loyal ‘Ramblers’ and Georgia Trust members. John and Bill’s distinct person-
alities complement each other, and they have enjoyed each other’s friendship as
much as we have enjoyed having them around. These two have been dependable S
volunteers, invaluable assets to The Georgia Trust and Rhodes Hall, and we are = [HI ' %
grateful for their commitment, time and teamwork. }JOHN TURMAN i p.,



around HISTORIC PROPERTIES FOR SALE

THE GEORGIA
TRUST
ENDANGERED
PROPERTIES
FOR SALE

The Revolving Fund Program was
established to provide effective alternatives
to demolition or neglect of architecturally
and historically significant properties

by promoting their rehabilitation and
monitoring their preservation in perpetuity.
For more information and photos of the
Trust's Endangered Properties For Sale,
visit www.GeorgiaTrust.org.

s 2 oL

HOUSWORTH-MOSELEY HOUSE
Lithonia, c. 1843. This 1,200 sq. ft. home sits on 7.4
acres near the Arabia Mountain Nature Preserve. Lo-
cated 20 miles from Atlanta, the house features largely
intact historic interior including original woodwork. The
lot includes a large front yard and a small picturesque
creek. The house has two bedrooms, one bathroom,
kitchen, dining room, living room, and family room. The
house will require rehabilitation, including updating sys-
tems, wood repair, and window repair. $95,000. Con-
tact Kate Ryan, 404-885-7817,
kryan@georgiatrust.org.

BERRY HOUSE

Sparta, c. 1820. This woodframe house features two
large rooms, each roughly 20" x 20’, on either side of
the main entrance hall on the lower level and two large
bedrooms on the second level. The dining room, with its
original fireplace and painted ceiling stencil, flows into
a new modern kitchen. Large bathroom w/ shower stall
and separate tub. Original interior features, such as wall
planks and wooden mantels, have been well preserved
and maintained. Excellent condition, requires very few
repairs/upgrades. $170,000. Contact Kate Ryan,
404-885-7817, kryan@georgiatrust.org.
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MILLER HOUSE

Forsyth, c. 1905. Victorian railroad cottage constructed
by Rev. A. S. Dix. The house is two rooms deep with
a central hallway and is located just half a mile from
the Forsyth town square & one mile from I-75. Zoned
for commercial or residential use, the Miller House will
need extensive rehabilitation work and all systems will
need to be upgraded. $20,000. Contact Kate Ryan,
404-885-7817, kryan@georgiatrust.org.

CHERRY COTTAGE

Washington, c. 1818. 4BR/2BA home built by Constan-
tine Church who bought the lot in 1784. One of the old-
est buildings in Washington, Cherry Cottage is a one-
and-a-half story wood-sided home containing 3,408
square feet, consisting of four bedrooms, two baths,
large sitting room, parlor, formal dining room, kitchen,
and library. Its lot is 1.10 acres and cannot be subdi-
vided. Located in a beautiful historic neighborhood.
$130,000. Contact Kate Ryan, 404-885-7817,
kryan@georgiatrust.org.

MCLEMORE COTTAGE

Vidalia, c. 1864. Donated to The Georgia Trust by
the family that has owned it for nearlyl50 years, the
McLemore Cottage is in good condition, with two bed-
rooms and one bath on the first floor and a large sleeping
loft on the second floor. The house has electric heaters,
window unit air conditioners, and large fireplaces in both
the living room and detached kitchen. The 3.68 acres has
an early smokehouse, well house, picnic area and historic
cemetery. Listed in the National Register of Historic Plac-
es. $95,000. Contact Kate Ryan, 404-885-7817, kryan@
georgiatrust.org.

KYTE HOUSE
Forsyth, c. 1914. Once known as “one of the handsomest
homes in Forsyth,” this two-story late Victorian-era house
features a central hallway and large centered hipped roof
dormer with fixed 4/1 windows. Zoned for commercial
or residential use, the house will need extensive reha-
bilitation work and all systems will need to be upgraded.
$40,000. Contact Kate Ryan, 404-885-7817, kryan@
georgiatrust.org.

ROSSITER-LITTLE HOUSE

Sparta, ¢. 1797. Considered the oldest house in Sparta,
the Rossiter-Little House was constructed by Dr. Timothy
Rossiter on the town’s highest spot. The two front wings
were added before the Civil War. Original materials include
fireplace mantels, heart pine floors and interior walls of
hand cut boards. The two-story house has a kitchen, eight
main rooms and two bathrooms. This house has been re-
habilitated and is in excellent condition. Some minor up-
grades may be required. $154,000. Contact Kate Ryan,
404-885-7817, kryan@georgiatrust.org.

FAMILY DONATES
MCLEMORE COTTAGE
TO GEORGIA TRUST

udith Davis and her son, Troy, have
J generously donated McLemore Cottage
(pictured left), their family’s rural retreat,
to the Trust’s Revolving Fund. Listed in the
National Register of Historic Places, the cot-
tage was built in 1864 by Chesly Bostwick and
Elizabeth Thigpin McLemore. In 1964, two of
Chesly and Elizabeth’s granddaughters, Inez
Sharpe McGregor and Lois Sharpe Mathews,
lovingly restored the cottage. Following nearly
150 years of continual ownership, the family
generously donated the McLemore Cottage
to The Georgia Trust’s Endangered Properties
Program. The house is now available for sale.
To learn more, visit www.GeorgiaTrust.org.

AUGUSTA, c. 1820s. 586 Broad St. is one of the
oldest surviving buildings in downtown. Historic materi-
als and details throughout second & third floors. Interior
is suited for commercial use, single or multiple residen-
tial units with separate entry. Parking available on Broad
Street. Consists of 3 floors with 6,162 sq. ft. Pocket doors,
folding doors, high ceilings, fireplaces w/original mantels,
hardwood floors. Near Augusta’s gov't, medical and edu-
cational centers. Listed on National Register of Historic
Places, making it eligible for grant funds and tax incentives
for certified rehabilitations. $79,900.Contact Robyn Ander-
son of Historic Augusta, Inc. at 706-724-0436.

GEORGETOWN c. 1860. Quitman County. Beau-
tiful 3BR/2BA, updated wi/large family room, 3 FP, open
front porch facing Lake Eufaula. Porch across entire back
of house. Deck overlooking large brick patio w/steel fire pit.
Heart pine floors & cabinets throughout. Master Bedroom
opens onto screened porch. 12 ft. ceilings, fans, HVAC.
Ramp access to back porch. 100 ft. water frontage. Land-
scaped grounds w/mature plantings. Cruise by boat to
Gulf on Chattahoochee River. $349,000. Contact D. Neal
Wickham, 706-570-7504, 706-507-4230.

NORCROSS, c. 1906. This large cottage has 4
Bedrooms/2 Baths with ~3100 sq. ft. and 1,068 sq. ft.
basement on .85 acres. Completely renovated in 2001;
5 fireplaces; basement; scenic gardens and trails;
gardener’s cottage; original hardwood floors; antique
fixtures. 2003 Tour of Homes; 2006 Gardens Inside
Gwinnett; $639,000. Contact Pat Eidt, peidt@att.net.
770-317-0272. View more information and photos at
www.331npeachtreest.com.

AUGUSTA, c. 1884. 307 James Brown Blvd. is a
Second Empire style commercial town house. Interior is
suited for commercial use, single or multiple residential units
with separate entrance. Consists of 3-1/2 stories w/ approx.
5,000 sq. ft. Flexible floor plans allow for modern ameni-
ties. Original trim and historic details - pocket doors, high
ceilings, fireplaces w/ original mantels, hardwood floors.
Only moments away from Augusta’s gov't, medical and
educational centers. Listed on National Register of Historic
Places, making it eligible for grant funds and tax incentives
for certified rehabilitations. $59,900. Contact Robyn Ander-
son of Historic Augusta, Inc. at 706-724-0436.

YOUR AD
COULD BE
HERE

To advertise your historic
property to a statewide audience,
visit www.GeorgiaTrust.org or
contact Traci Clark at
tclark@georgiatrust.org

or 404-885-7802.

PINE MOUNTAIN, c. 1900s. Beautiful home
located in the heart of Pine Mountain, Georgia,
home of Callaway Gardens and Roosevelt State
Park, Georgia’'s largest. Old South Charm with 14 ft.
ceilings and entrance foyer with wood flooring. Three
bedrooms, Two full baths, formal living and dining.
Zoned commercial and ready for a bed and breakfast,
gift shop, just about anything you could dream of in the
great tourist area voted Georgia’s favorite small town.
Call Patty Wallace for more information 706-663-4021
or www.harvesthillsrealty.com.

around HISTORIC PROPERTIES FOR SALE

DECATUR, c. 1839. High House in downtown
Decatur: this exceptional property could be used as an
office, medical center, Bed & Breakfast Inn, or perhaps
converted back to residential use (See Broker for details.)
Features two expansive verandas, a view of the Atlanta
skyline, 7 fireplaces, and original architectural details.
Ample onsite parking for commercial uses. Walk to the
Square, Courthouse, MARTA. Broker: Renaissance
Consulting Group, LLC, 404-477-1358.

e Bl g

JONES COUNTY, c. 1820. The Cabiness-Hunt
house is one of the oldest houses in Jones County.
Listed on the National Register of Historic Places, the
house is made of historic heart of pine and contains
more than 10 rooms. It would make a one-of-a-kind in-
vestment for the right person. Buyer will be responsible
for moving the structure. Contact John at 404-663-6713
or john@nwa-eng.com for more information.

SOCIAL CIRCLE, c. 1889. charming Victorian
home listed in the National Register of Historic Places,
with Impressive Entry, Open Stairway, 12 Ft. Ceilings,
Heart Pine Floors, 3 Bedrooms, 2.5 Baths, Cozy Kitch-
en, Wood Burning Stove, Screened Porch, Detached
Workshop, 2 Car Garage. Walk to the famous “Blue Wil-
low Restaurant,” Schools, Library, and Shopping. Of-
fered by Conner Smith Realty, contact Kathy Trammell
770-815-6135. Asking Price: $162,800.
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around MEMBERSHIP

SPRING PLACE, c. 1842. Murray County. Lo-
cated in Spring Place National Register Historic District.
3,900+ sq. ft., 3BR, 2 BA, solid brick construction on 2.5
acres. It is 4-over-4 on both levels. Original walnut two-
panel doors, walnut wainscotting in LR & DR. Hardwood
floors, some original heart of pine. Completely restored,
new wiring, new plumbing, 4 H&A systems. Detached
3-car 1 3/4 story garage, 30’ x 42'. $495,000. Contact
Wayne McDaniel, wmcdan9821@aol.com, 706-280-
3989. www.150elmst.shutterfly.com

WAYCROSS c. 1912. The Bunn Building is a his-
toric tax credit eligible contributing building to the Way-
cross Downtown National Register District. Ready for
a complete rehab this brick reinforced concrete build-
ing was built as a professional office building in 1912
and was in continuous use until 2002. A housing market
study, Proforma and floor plans are available. Contact
Bunn Partners, Limited, LP at aham@4pmcdp.com or
904-398-0085. www.bunnhistoricforsalegeorgia.com.

WAYNESBORO, c. 1824. The Reynolds-Perry
Homestead is a beautiful Classical Revival Cottage on
a 4 acre lot in the city’s National Register Historic District
within walking distance of shops and restaurants in the
quaint downtown. Soaring 13’ ceilings, wide plank heart
pine floors, exceptional pine paneling in library, Approx.
2 acre pecan grove. Old schoolhouse dependency cot-
tage. 4br/3ba, c.4388 sq. ft. Adelle Dennis; Rex Property
& Land, LLC 706-829-1381 Adelle@AdelleDennis.com.

around MEMBERSHIP

-

Dewberry Capital

The Frances and Beverly Dubose
Foundation

Georgia Power

E. J. Grassmann Trust

Mr. and Mrs. F. Sheffield Hale

Mr. and Mrs. Nathaniel Hansford

Mr. and Mrs. Howell Hollis

Mrs. Sara J. Hoyt

Thomas M. and Irene B. Kirbo
Charitable Trust

Mr. and Mrs.Wyck A. Knox, Jr.

The Dorothy V. & N. Logan Lewis
Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Jack S.
Markwalter, Jr.

CHAIRMAN'’S COUNCIL

Sara Giles Moore Foundation

Katherine and John Murphy
Foundation

James Hyde Porter Charitable
Foundation, Inc.

Ron Jones Photography

RSA Management Company

Ms. Frances H. Shropshire

Wal-Mart

The Watson-Brown Foundation

Mr. Tom B. Wight

Williams Family Foundation
of Georgia

Wilmington Trust

1772 Foundation

CHAIRMAN'S CIRCLE

AAA Parking

Mr. and Mrs. Peter M. Abreu
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel P. Amos
Atlantic Trust Company
Avante Catering

BNY Mellon

Chubb Federal Insurance Companies

Dr. Benjamin C. Clark, Jr.

The Community Foundation of
Central Georgia’s Knight Fund
for Macon

Mr. William N. Banks

Carole Parks Catering

Deloitte & Touche

Dennis Dean: A Catering Company

DueDiligence Associates, Inc.

Fickling Family Foundation

Mrs. John T. Godwin

~

Interface
Jerry Dilts and Associates Caterers
JEZEBEL Magazine
Kilpatrick Townsend & Stockton LLP
The Ray M. and Mary Elizabeth Lee
Foundation
Livingston Foundation, Inc.
Lord, Aeck & Sargent, Inc.
Masterpiece Catering
Colonel Wayne Mock
Sun In My Belly
SunTrust
Synovus
Mr. G. Kimbrough Taylor
and Ms. Triska Drake
TSYS
Frances Wood Wilson Foundation

TRUSTPEOPLE

LES CALLAHAN
President

First Colony

Financial Corporation
Atlanta

Les Callahan (pictured with his wife
Barbara) serves as Vice-Chairman
of the Board of Trustees of The
Georgia Trust. He has successfully
headed the Preservation Gala
fundraising committee for the past
three years.

“Evolving technology and
changing lifestyles will reduce
the number and size of new
buildings where we live,
work, and play. Revitalization,
protection, and preservation
of existing structures must be
a priority for the present and
future generations.”
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WELCOME

NEW & REJOINING

MEMBERS

(Nov. 16, 2011 - Feb. 15, 2012)

Individual
Acworth
Mr. Jonathan Brown

Albany
Mr. Christopher Fullerton

Alpharetta
Dr. and Mrs. John R. Kaatz

Athens

Dr. and Mrs. Robert P.
Bostrom

Mr. Thomas H. Davis

Mr. and Mrs. Robert E.
Gibson

Ms. Nina Hellerstein

Mr. John C. Knowlton, Jr.

Atlanta

Mr. and Mrs. R. Cotton
Alston 111

Mr. Mrs. William B. Astrop

Mr. and Mrs. Jim Auchmutey

Ms. Meredith Bell

Mr. Joe Brittain

Ms. Barbara Cade

Mr. and Mrs. Harry Camp

Mr. David Cavender

Ms. Kathleen Clayton

Ms. Caroline E. Coles

Mr. and Mrs. F. Dean
Copeland

Mr. Frank C. Crane

Dr. Gray F. Crouse

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph B. Doyle

Ms. Janine DuPree

Mr. Donald L. Eastrling

Mr. and Mrs. Rutherford L.
Ellis

Cooley Fales

Mr. John Ferguson

Mr. William Fleming

Ms. Louise Franklin

Mr. Tom Friedrichs

Ms. Laleah Furniss

Mr. Ralph Fuschillio

Mr. Kendrick F. Gearon

Mr. Bernard Gray

Mr. and Mrs. Page Griffin

Ms. Louise Staton Gunn

Gay Gwinner

Mr. and Mrs. Christopher M.
Hadorn

Dr. and Mrs. John B.
Hardman

Mr. and Mrs. Craig Hayes

Mr. and Mrs. Philip C. Henry

Mr. Dennis Hertlein

Mr. Richard G. Holmes

Ms. Elizabeth Hunger

Ms. Mary lzard

Mr. A. Stephen Johnson

Mr. Philip A. Jones

Mr. Terry Kearns

Mr. Kyle Kessler

Ms. Julia G. Kyle

Ms. James H. Landon

Ms. Catherine Elliott Lee

Mr. and Mrs. Richard H. Lee

Mr. and Mrs. Fred P. Linquist

Mr. Thomas L. Manning

Mr. Robert L. Mays

Ms. Eloise Mills

Mr. and Mrs. Charles E.
Murphy, Jr.

Dr. and Mrs. John B.
Neeld, Jr.

Mr. Harry O’Connor

Ms. Anne O’Shields
Alexander

Ms. Virginia Philip

Mr. and Mrs. William
Pulgram

Mr. and Mrs. Mitchell M.
Purvis

Mr. Caleb Racicot

Ms. Bamby Ray

Ms. Martha Reynolds

Mr. and Mrs. David G. Ross

Mr. and Mrs. Charles D.
Runion

Mr. Victor Segrest

Mr. and Mrs. J. Benjamin
Shapiro

Ms. Anita Shippen

Dr. and Mrs. Carter Smith, Jr.

Ms. Margaret M. Smith

Colonel Thad R. Sobieski

Dr. and Mrs. Luther David
Stacy

Reverend and Mrs. George
G. Watson

Mr. John Wyle

Augusta

Judge and Mrs. H. Scott Allen

Mr. D. Hugh Connolly

Mr. and Mrs. W. Tennent
Houston

Dr. and Mrs. R. Glen Owen

Mrs. Whitney Pickett

Dr. and Mrs. Robinson W.
Schilling, Jr.

Avondale Estates
Ms. Mary G. Lovings
Ms. Denise Mummert

Blairsville
Mr. Joseph Adams

Calvary
Mrs. Jeanette Maxwell

Cartersville
Mr. and Mrs. Ross Gates
Dr. and Mrs. Robert F. Norton

Cleveland
Mr. Dean Loudermilk

College Park
Mr. T. Kelley White

Columbus

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Gates
Mr. Garry Pound

Mr. and Mrs. Edward Sprouse
Ms. Laura Yates

Commerce
Ms. Charlotte Mealor

Cordele
Cordele Main Street

Cumming
Ms. Bobbye Wright

Dahlonega

Mr. and Mrs. George Carey
Ms. Lisa Flaherty

Mr. Scott Pluckhahn

Dalton
Mr. Marvin Sowder

Decatur

Dr. Mary Armstrong
Dr. Robert Bodimer
Mr. Robert Callner
Ms. Teresa Tucker
Ms. Betty Willis

Duluth
Ms. Barbara Macon

Fairburn
Mr. Corey Lumpkin
Mr. Jane Strickland

Fayetteville
Dr. Anthony Lawson
Mr. Lamar McEachern

Gainesville
Mr. Robert Bruner

Griffin

Mr. John Carlisle

Mr. Eugene W. Dabbs IV
Mr. J. William Edwards
Mr. James Ogletree

Jackson
Mr. Richard Ballard

Lagrange

Mr. J. W. Carr

Mr. Earl Marsh

Ms. Mary Nelle Traylor

Lawrenceville

Mr. James D’Angelo
Ms. Anna Elliott
Ms. Carey Shellman

Lexington
Mr. Jack D. Howard

Macon
Mr. and Mrs. Dick Thomasson

Madison
Dr. and Mrs. Donald R. Lane

Mansfield
Ms. Elisabeth Morehouse

Marietta

Mr. and Mrs. Neal Allen

Ms. Molly Brotherton

Mr. and Mrs. Christopher G.
Brown

Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Frey

Mr. Mark Keiser

Mr. and Mrs. James T.
Kerr, Jr.

Ms. Carole Lade

Mr. Richard Peebles

Ms. Christine Quinn

Ms. Anne Rood

Mr. W. Allen Separk

Monroe
Dr. and Mrs. C. Goodwin
Green

Moultrie
Mr. and Mrs. Matt Friedlander

Newnan

Ms. Barbara Brown

The Honorable and Mrs. Jack
Camp

Mr. John R. Morre 11

Oxford
Mr. Bryan Needham
Mr. and Mrs. Hoyt P. Oliver

Peachtree City
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Knauff

Pine Mountain
Mr. Charles Kimbrough

Rabun Gap
Mrs. Mildred Whittaker

Rayle
Mr. James David Carter

Rome

Ms. Mary Kay Evans

Dr. and Mrs. J. D. Hanks, Jr.
Mrs. H. F. Hunter, Jr.

Ms. Kristie Kemper

Roswell

Ms. Janet Borden Eastman

Mr. Ronald Mulgrew

Mr. and Mrs. Richard H.
Shoemaker

Sandersville
Mrs. Jo N. Cummings

Savannah

Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Carey

Ms. Celia Dunn

Ms. Mary Gay

Dr. and Mrs. John E.
Hartshorn

Mr. and Mrs. Dean L.
Hortsman

Ms. Pamela G. Lossing

Mr. Ron Melander
and Mr. Jim Cox

Mr. Richard Meyer 111

Ms. Barbara Paull

Mr. John Simpson

Mr. and Mrs. Ken Sirlin

Mr. E. William Thomas

Sea Island
Mr. Robert C. Montgomery

Social Circle
Mr. Robert Bailes

St. Simons Island
Mr. and Mrs. Tom Gash

Stockingbridge
Frank C. Roberts

Stone Mountain

Mr. and Mrs. Willie Bussey
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Cloues
Ms. Claudia Opitz

Sylvester
Ms. Teri Spurlin

Thomaston
Ms. Mary B. Williams

Thomasville
Ms. Charlotte Miller
Dr. and Mrs. Philip C. Watt

Washington
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Eskew
Dr. Jospeh B. Harris

Watkinsville
Ms. Michele Fambrough

Woodstock
Mr. Thomas J. Campbell

Aiken, SC
Ms. Jane C. Davis

Alachua, FL
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Jackson

Auburn, AL
Ms. Valerie Linn

New York, NY
Mr. Spencer Korwin

Santa Barbara, CA
Ms. Marjorie Boyle

Sewanne, TN
Mr. Robert F. Fowler, 111

Business Members

Atlanta

Cascade Heights
Neighborhood Business
Association

Harrison Design Association

RSA Management Company

Commerce
Commerce Downtown
Development Authority

Sharpsburg
Steed Properties Construction
& Renovation

UPGRADES

Individual

Sustaining Contributor

Ms. Nancy Barber

Mr. and Mrs. Klaus W.
Darnall

Mr. and Mrs. L. W. Gray

Lee N. Howell

Mr. and Mrs. Charles
McDonald

Ms. M. Susan Osier

Mr. and Mrs. Albert M.
Redd, Jr.

Mr. Stephen V. Skalko

Dr. and Ms. J. Trevor
Woodhams

Heritage Contributor

Mr. and Mrs. George N.
Gundersen

Mr. Gregory G. Hardwick

Dr. Lori J. Lucas

Mr. Frederick C. Mabry

Colonel and Mrs. John A.
Noble

Ms. Barbara Pull

Mr. Delmas L. Webb

Presidential Circle
Mr. and Mrs. Miles Smith
Mr. and Mrs. James K. Warren

Chairman’s Circle
Mr. and Mrs. Nathaniel
Hansford

HAY HOUSE
MEMBERS
Individual

Bronze

Mrs. Jimmy Bowman
Barbara and Bill Stephens

STAY UP-TO-
DATE WITH THE
GEORGIA TRUST.

IN MEMORIAM )

William Bradley Hale

Mr. and Mrs. Victor B. Atkins
Atlanta History Center

Mr. David D. Aughtry

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph R. Bankoff

Mr. And Mrs. Kenneth Bazzle

Mr. and Mrs. Hunter Bell, Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Berman

Mr. and Mrs. James J. W. Biggers, Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Burton L. Bridges

Siri and Casey Butler

Butler, Wooten & Fryhofer

Central Atlanta Progress, Atlanta Down-
town Development District

Mr. and Mrs. Richard Cheatham
Ms. Carole J. Clark

Ms. Erin Clarke

Mr. and Mrs. Bryant Coats

Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Covington
Mr. Charles R. Crisp

Mr. and Mrs. Archie H. Davis

Mr. and Mrs. Everette Doffermyre
Mr. Joseph W. Dorn

Mr. and Mrs. John C. Duckworth, Jr.
Mr. Paul W. Dudman

Senator and Mrs. Michael Egan

Mr. and Mrs. Robert Ellis

Mr. and Mrs. Nimrod T. Frazer

Mr. and Mrs. Walter A. George 111
Ms. Rebecca Goza

Mrs. William Grabbe

Mr. and Mrs. John H. Grayson, Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph W. Hamilton 111
Mr. and Mrs. Nathaniel Hansford
Mr. and Mrs. R. A. Hester Il1

Mr. and Mrs. Theodore M. Hester
Mr. and Mrs. John lzard, Jr.

Jessup, Ingram, Burns & Associates LLP
Mr. Craig B. Jones

King & Spaldng

Ms. Margaret P. Kinney

IN HONORARIUM

James E. Barfield
Mr. Tom B. Wight

Bonnie C. Dowling
Mr. Tom B. Wight

Diane Lewis
Hannah Napier Warren
Mr. Tom B. Wight

Ms. Carla Knobloch

Mr. and Mrs. Hector Llorens, Jr.

Dr. Elizabeth Lyon and Mr. John Lyon
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert H. McAlexander
Mr. and Mrs. Neill G. McBryde

Mr. and Mrs. Mark C. McDonald

Mr. and Mrs. John Hays Mershon
Joyce Lainer Charitable Trust

The Montpelier Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Nadal

Mr. and Mrs. Joel Vernon O’Neal, Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Charels H. Ogburn

Mr. and Mrs. Michael W. Peregrine
Mr. and Mrs. Hugh Peterson, Jr.

Dr. and Mrs. Luther W. Richardson, Jr.
Ms. Nancy W. Ross

Mr. and Mrs. Michael C. Russ

Mr. and Mrs. John Seydel

Mr. and Mrs. John P. Spalding

Ms. Margaret R. Spalding

Dr. and Mrs. Luther David Stacy

Mr. and Mrs. Mike Starr

Ms. Elvira Tate

Mr. G. Kimbrough Taylor and Ms. Triska
Drake

Mr. and Mrs. Frank Troutman

Gaye Van der Eerden

The Watson Brown Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Mason White

Mr. Tom B. Wight

Mr. Thomas R. Williams

Mr. and Mrs. Bruce B. Wilson

Mr. and Mrs. Richard G. Woodward
Mr. Robert G. Woodward

Barry Phillips
Mr. Tom B. Wight

Louise Dunn Wansley
Mr. and Mrs. William Dunn Wansley

Boone Smith IV
Claire Smith

James H. Webb
Mr. Tom B. Wight

J
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